
 
MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL LEGISLATIVE SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, PORTSMOUTH 

MONDAY, JUNE 13, 2016 
8:30 A.M. 

 
I. Call to Order 
 
Mayor Blalock opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m. and noted that it was being televised and 
recorded. He asked everyone to introduce themselves for the public. 
 
Present: Mayor Jack Blalock; Assistant Mayor Jim Splaine; Councilor Chris Dwyer; State 
Senator Martha Fuller Clark; State Representatives Pamela Gordon and Laura Pantelakos; 
Staff Present: City Manager John Bohenko; Assistant City Attorney Jane Ferrini; and 
Recording Secretary Valerie French. 
 
II. Distribution of draft Minutes from May 2, 2016 meeting. 
 
Senator Clark moved to approve the minutes as presented.  Seconded by Representative 
Pantelakos and voted. 
 
III. Discussion. 
 

A. Status update on I-95 Barrier for Sherburne Neighborhood in Ward 3 – Public 
Works 

 
City Manager Bohenko introduced Public Works Director Peter Rice and Transportation 
Engineer Eric Eby. 
 
Engineer Eby reviewed a handout regarding Noise Analysis by the NH DOT. The document 
is attached an incorporated into the Minutes. He explained the difference between a Type I 
project which are generally those which involve the addition of a new roadway, or the 
physical alteration of an existing roadway and a Type II project, which are designed solely for 
the purpose of traffic noise abatement in areas where no highway improvements are 
scheduled. He stated that the NH DOT does not have a Type II noise policy and therefore 
does not usually evaluate areas where projects are not proposed. He stated the State is 
supposed to have a Type II policy in order to apply for federal funding, but it does not. 
 
Representative Pantelakos stated they have been working on this sound barrier for Panaway 
Manor since the beginning of the highway project but they change their policies frequently so 
it has been frustrating. 
 
Senator Clark asked if the Dept. of Transportation has given any reason why we don’t have 
the policy in place.  Mr. Eby replied no. 
 
Senator Clark stated we can look into getting money from Capital budget for funding as well 
but it would be helpful to be able to figure out the cost when applying for those funds. 

 
 
 
 

 
For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars, 
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 



Legislative Delegation Committee Meeting Minutes
June 13, 2016

Page 2

For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars,
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 

 

 

 

Public Works Director Rice stated that the previous DOT Commissioner had indicated a 
willingness to adjust policies but has since moved on and they are not sure about the new 
Director. He stated he would estimate anywhere from $1-2 million in cost depending on 
conditions. 
 
Representative Pantelakos asked if there is any design yet and has heard of a relatively 
inexpensive version that has worked in other areas.  Public Works Director Rice stated there 
is no design yet which is why there is a wide range of potential cost. 
 
Councilor Dwyer stated it would also be important to know if there are other communities that 
have this issue as well and would also like to get this introduced in September. 
 
Senator Clark stated that they will meet with the new DOT Director first before introducing 
legislation and feels that if we are able to get federal funding for this, then they would be 
willing to do it. Public Works Director Rice stated this is a renewed focus of something they 
have been working on for a long time. 
 
Assistant Mayor Splaine stated this was a big issue of the neighborhood when he did his 
neighborhood walk of Panaway Manor and there are other areas of the city that deal with it 
as well. He stated he has also heard there are less expensive options and feels that these 
people all pay taxes and it is important to resolve this issue for them. He stated the City 
should do a study to determine the impact areas, the types of terrain that will be impacted 
i.e., ledge, marshland, etc. and if it keeps being put off by the State, then it should be in the 
City’s Capital Improvements Plan. 
 
City Manager Bohenko stated we have taken up the slack for the State in many ways and 
once we do, they never look back. He stated that the State should have a noise barrier 
policy. At the request of the committee members, City Manager Bohenko stated he will 
send a map with parameters and linear footage to the delegation in advance of their meeting 
with the DOT Director. 
 
Representative Pantelakos stated that Rockingham Avenue should also be included but has 
been ignored in the past because there aren’t enough houses on the street and agrees with 
City Manager Bohenko that the State should not be let off the hook. 
 

B. Status update of policies submitted to NHMA. Committees have recommended 
policies and they will be mailed out in late June in advance of NHMA Policy 
Conference scheduled for September 23, 2016 

 
Assistant City Attorney Ferrini stated that the committee has recommended some policies 
that the towns and cities will receive outlines by the end of June and the vote will take place 
in September. 
 
Councilor Dwyer, who is a member of the policy committee, explained that there is an issue 
with having the towns be able to talk about legislation on a broader level for the good of the 
State as a whole and feels they have a narrow view of the effects on cities. 



Legislative Delegation Committee Meeting Minutes
June 13, 2016

Page 3

For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars,
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 

 

 

 

Senator Clark stated there had been an effort to get the cities together and asked if that had 
gone forward at all. 
 
City Manager Bohenko suggested reaching out to Judy Silva of NHMA and remind them that 
the 13 cities also pay dues and would like them to develop the policy. 

C. Discussion with Committee and Delegates regarding bills signed by Governor: 

Assistant City Attorney Ferrini reviewed the bills that have been signed by Governor Hassan 
to date noting that the Committee has discussed most of these at previous meetings: 

 Accessory Dwellings – Chapter 6/SB 146 
 Right to Know – Chapters 29 and 30/HB 1418 and HB 1419 
 Tax Deeds – Chapter 37/HB 1219 
 Criminal Record Check School Employee and Volunteer – Chapter 117/SB 152 
 Employer Reporting Requirement – Chapter 110/HB 1352 
 Municipal Permit fees for Electrical Charting Stations – Chapter 99/SB 359 
 Utility Trailer Registration – Chapter 93/HB 1655 
 Planning Board Applications – Chapter 81/HB 1202 
 Calculating Adequate Education – Chapter 8/SB 227 
 Net Metering – Chapter 31/HB 1116 and Chapter 33/SB 378 
 Medicaid Expansion – Chapter 13/HB1696 

 
Discussion ensued regarding the Accessory Dwellings law and the lack of ability to place 
municipal control to address the Air BnB issue.  City Manager Bohenko stated he is 
concerned with the life safety aspect and had wanted something to address that included. 
 
Next, discussion ensued regarding the Medicaid expansion which has resulted in a decrease 
in impact on local welfare services. City Manager Bohenko asked if the County pays for 
Medicaid because there is a dollar amount in their budget for Medicaid. Representative 
Pantelakos stated it could be in reference to the County nursing home. Representative 
Gordon later presented a State of New Hampshire map with Medicaid figures per city/town to 
be included with the minutes. 
 

D. Discussion with Committee and Delegates regarding bills passed, but not yet 
signed by Governor: 

 
Assistant City Attorney Ferrini reviewed the bills that have passed but have not yet been 
signed by Governor Hassan to date noting that the Committee has discussed most of these 
at previous meetings: 
 

 HB 1697 – Uber Bill 
 SB 411- Merged Lots 
 SB 482 - Short-time rentals 
 HB1590 - Short term rentals 
 HB 1428 – SAG funding and funding police standards 
 HB 1395 record retention 



Legislative Delegation Committee Meeting Minutes
June 13, 2016

Page 4

For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars,
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 

 

 

 

 HB 606 – Right to know no charge review of electronic record 
 HB 285 – right to know to allow review of legal advice in non public without counsel present 
 HB 2016 – funds from DOT for bridge aide 
 HB 1198 – valuation of poles and conduits 
 HB 430 – veterans’ credit 
 SB 364 – Complete streets 
 HB 1293 – Charter Amendment 
 HB 345 – Agritourism 
 SB 509 – Voter Challenge affidavit 

 
Discussion ensued regarding HB 1697, Uber bill with Attorney Ferrini stating that this bill will 
become effective immediately upon signing and will be dealt with at the State level.  
Assistant Mayor Splaine stated that this will not deal with taxis so the City will still need to 
decide what to do with the taxi businesses and suggested notifying the police department of 
the impending law so they will understand what they will need to do with ride-share drivers in 
the future. 
 
Next, Attorney Ferrini explained HB 285, which allows review of legal advice in non public 
session with a written opinion without requiring Counsel to appear in person. 
Assistant Mayor Splaine stated that gives the option but he would assume that we wouldn’t 
do that here in Portsmouth. 
 
City Manager Bohenko clarified that we will always have our own attorney present, but not 
necessarily the attorney that rendered the opinion. 
 
Regarding HB 430, Veterans credit, Attorney Ferrini explained it is enabling legislation to give 
a tax credit to any honorably discharged veteran having served 90 days or more. 
 
City Manager Bohenko stated this is a policy discussion for the Council as it would have a big 
impact and is very significant as every dollar we give up, has to be made up somewhere  
else. 
 
Finally, discussion ensued regarding HB 1590, short term rentals which defined short term 
rentals as rentals or one or more rooms in a residential unit for occupancy for tourists or 
transient use for less than 185 consecutive days and the lack of oversight for cities and 
towns. Senator Clark stated the definition was taken from the Department of Revenue in 
order to fit in with their regulations but a committee has been established to revisit this 
complex issue. Representative Pantelakos agrees that this is a life-safety issue as we will 
not know how many people or who is in the buildings. City Manager Bohenko stated his 
concern is with college students who often rent for under the 185 days. 
 

E. Discussion with Committee and Delegates regarding topics of bills of interest 
that were referred to interim study, special session, or killed: 

 
Assistant City Attorney Ferrini reviewed the topics of interest that were referred to interim 
study, special session or killed: 



Legislative Delegation Committee Meeting Minutes
June 13, 2016

Page 5

For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars,
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 

 

 

 

 SB 497 – distribution of meals and rooms tax revenue 
 HB 1214 - hotel occupancy 
 HB 1689 – hotel occupancy (interim study) 
 SB 421 – regarding municipal liability (interim study) 
 HB 1687 and HB 1688 – increase municipal liability 
 HB 1203 – vote on variances 
 SB 346 – expanding polling hours 
 SB 349 – Election of Chief election officer if City Clerk is non resident 
 HB 1602 – prius tax (interim study) 
 SB 485 law enforcement fund opiate crisis (special session June 16, 2016) 

 
Representative Pantelakos explained that having issues go to interim study doesn’t 
necessarily mean they will come back and is dependent on what the head of the Committee 
decides to do. Senator Clark stated that there is a report generated even if it is only to state 
that no study was done and the deadline is November 1st. 
 
City Attorney Ferrini stated that something of interest to Cities is that the bill regarding 
electing a Chief Election Officer if the City Clerk isn’t a resident will be definitely coming back 
next session. 
 
Finally, they discussed the special session of June 16, 2016 regarding law enforcement 
funding of the opiate crisis with Representative Pantelakos stating that the amendments 
added to the previous bill killed it and they wanted to come back with a clean bill. 
 

F, Discussion with Committee and Delegates regarding issues of interest and 
potential bills for next session including but not limited to: plastic bags; meals 
and rooms tax revenue distribution; hotel occupancy fees; short term rentals 

 
City Manager Bohenko stated that AirBnB enabling legislation is important as well as the 
$1.00 per night hotel room surcharge.  He stated we will need to talk to our land use boards 
and staff regarding the Accessory Dwellings. 
 
Senator Clark asked if we have heard anything more on the plastic bags ban and if the City 
has any ability to implement a ban. 
 
Mayor Blalock stated a letter has been sent to the Attorney General but we have not yet 
received any clarification. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the need to bring back the meals and room tax revenue 
distribution, hotel occupancy fees etc. as the funds need to be distributed more fairly to those 
who are collecting the taxes. Senator Clark asked that the information from the NH Office 
of Energy and Planning entitled “Planning for Accessory Dwelling” be included as an 
attachment to the minutes. 
 
Senator Clark stated that bill filings can begin in early September and closes in December. 



Legislative Delegation Committee Meeting Minutes
June 13, 2016

Page 6

For further information on the Legislature, draft bills and the Senate and House Calendars,
see http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us. For information regarding the New Hampshire 

 

 

 

G. Discussion of next meeting 
 
The next meeting of the full committee will be held on September 19, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. 
unless something comes up over the next few months that needs to be addressed and then it 
will be at the call of the Chair. 
 
IV. Miscellaneous/Unfinished Business. 

NONE 

V. Adjournment.        

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

 

























o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o



o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o



o
o
o

o




	Final-Legislative Committee Minutes-June 13 2016-jf
	NH Medicaid Info
	NHDES-Air Quality
	Planning for accessory dwellings - NHOEP

